

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

	<u>Page</u>
Independent Auditor's Report	1-2
Financial Statements	
Statement of Financial Position	3
Statement of Activities	4
Statement of Functional Expenses	5
Statement of Cash Flows	6
Notes to Financial Statements	7-15
Additional Reports Required by Government Auditing Standards	
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial	16.15
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	16-17

# CUSACK & COMPANY

# Certified Public Accountants LLC

7 AIRPORT PARK BOULEVARD LATHAM, NEW YORK 12110 (518) 786-3550 Fax (518) 786-1538 E-MAIL ADDRESS: CPAS@CUSACKCPAS.COM WWW CUSACKCPAS COM

MEMBERS OF: AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MEMBERS OF: NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

**Board of Trustees** Green Tech High Charter School Albany, New York

# **Report on Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Green Tech High Charter School (a nonprofit organization) (the "School"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

# Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

# **Auditor's Responsibility**

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

# **Opinion**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Green Tech High Charter School as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets, its functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

# Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 2019 on our consideration of Green Tech High Charter School's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the School's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPA'S LLC

Cusade & Cugny CP4'S LIC

Latham, New York October 29, 2019

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

# **ASSETS**

Current Assets Cash - Operations	\$	672,944
Cash - Restricted	Ф	40,000
Grants, Contracts and Other Receivables, Net		182,607
Pledges Receivable		60,000
Prepaid Expense		8,684
Total Current Assets		964,235
Property and Equipment, Net		504,049
Other Assets		
Cash - Board Designated		76,388
Cush Bould Bosignatou		70,200
Total Assets	<u>\$</u>	1,544,672
<u>Liabilities and Net Assets</u>		
Current Liabilities		
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt	\$	191,248
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses	Ψ	7,219
Accrued Payroll and Benefits		291,355
Compensated Absences		28,990
Total Current Liabilities		518,812
Long-Term Liabilities		
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion		380,984
Total Liabilities		899,796
Net Assets		
Without Donor Restrictions:		
Undesignated		468,488
Board Designated		76,388
Subtotal		544,876
With Donor Restrictions:		
Purpose Restricted		100,000
Total Nat Aggata		(11 07)
Total Net Assets		644,876
Total Liabilities and Net Assets	\$	1,544,672

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	Without Donor Restrictions	With Donor Restrictions	Total
Revenue	<u>restrictions</u>	<u>reconsections</u>	10001
Public School District Resident Student Enrollment Students with Disabilities Grants and Contracts	\$ 4,784,417 53,664	\$ - - -	\$ 4,784,417 53,664
Federal Grants State and Local Grants Food Service/Children Nutrition Program	153,109 92,116 168,586	<u>-</u>	153,109 92,116 168,586
Total Revenue	5,251,892		5,251,892
Expenses			
Program Services Regular Education Special Education Other Programs	3,434,129 314,242 177,461	- - -	3,434,129 314,242 177,461
Total Program Services	3,925,832	-	3,925,832
Management and General	1,119,109		1,119,109
Total Operating Expenses	5,044,941		5,044,941
Surplus from School Operations	206,951		206,951
Other Revenue and Reclassifications			
Contributions Interest Income	39,441 4,651	100,000	139,441 4,651
E-Rate Income	11,619	-	11,619
Miscellaneous Income	53,595	-	53,595
Net Assets Released from Restrictions Total Other Revenue	80,000 189,306	(80,000) 20,000	209,306
Increase in Net Assets	396,257	20,000	416,257
Net Assets, Beginning of Year, Restated	148,619	80,000	228,619
Net Assets, End of Year	<u>\$ 544,876</u>	<u>\$ 100,000</u>	<u>\$ 644,876</u>

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

		Progran	n Services		Supporting Services	
	Regular <u>Education</u>	Special <b>Education</b>	Other <u>Programs</u>	<u>Total</u>	Management and General	<u>Total</u>
Salaries	\$ 1,870,805	\$ 178,777	\$ 109,555	\$ 2,159,137	\$ 578,414	\$ 2,737,551
Benefits and Payroll Taxes	423,188	40,440	24,782	488,410	130,841	619,251
Contracted Services	218,037	20,836	-	238,873	-	238,873
Educational Materials	56,801	5,428	-	62,229	-	62,229
Field Trips	12,014	-	-	12,014	-	12,014
Fundraising	-	-	3,131	3,131	-	3,131
Insurance	30,240	2,890	1,771	34,901	9,349	44,250
Maintenance and Repairs	186,968	17,867	10,949	215,784	57,806	273,590
Marketing and Recruitment	-	-	-	-	63,271	63,271
Miscellaneous	-	-	-	-	3,304	3,304
Postage and Delivery	-	-	-	-	10,683	10,683
Professional Services	-	-	-	-	64,391	64,391
Rent	276,771	26,449	16,208	319,428	85,572	405,000
Sports	93,483	-	-	93,483	-	93,483
Staff Development	30,926	2,955	-	33,881	-	33,881
Supplies and Materials	-	-	-	-	45,864	45,864
Telephone and Internet	44,695	4,271	2,617	51,583	13,819	65,402
Transportation (Student)	25,436	-	-	25,436	-	25,436
Travel	5,693	544	-	6,237	-	6,237
Uniforms	14,820	-	-	14,820	-	14,820
Utilities	50,150	4,792	2,937	57,879	15,506	73,385
Depreciation	94,102	8,993	5,511	108,606	29,094	137,700
Interest					11,195	11,195
Total Expenses	\$ 3,434,129	\$ 314,242	<u>\$ 177,461</u>	\$ 3,925,832	\$ 1,119,109	\$ 5,044,941

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Casl	n F	lows	Provid	led	by	Operating	Activities:
------	-----	------	--------	-----	----	-----------	-------------

Increase in Net Assets	\$ 416,257
Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Cash Provided by Operating Activities:	
Depreciation	137,700
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities	
(Increase) Decrease in Assets Grants and Contracts Receivable Pledges Receivable Prepaid Expense	125,820 (60,000) (4,369)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses Accrued Payroll and Benefits Compensated Absences	 (18,506) (36,849) 3,801
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	 563,854
Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities Purchase of Property and Equipment	 (10,742)
Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities Payments on Long-Term Debt	 (187,695)
Net Increase in Cash	365,417
Cash, Beginning of Year	 423,915
Cash, End of Year	\$ 789,332
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information	
Cash Paid for Interest	\$ 11,195
Assets Purchased with Debt Proceeds	\$ 44,559

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

#### 1. ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE

# Organization

The mission of Green Tech High Charter School (the "School") is to prepare young men to complete high school with a Regents diploma so they will have the opportunity to attend college or choose an alternative, responsible career path as they enter adulthood. The School will succeed in this mission by providing a complete college preparatory high school curriculum that ensures every student will attain the skills and coursework necessary for a Regents diploma, including the use of computer technology, with an added knowledge and understanding of the environment.

A provisional charter, valid for five years, was granted to the School by the Charter School Institute of the State University of New York pursuant to Article 56 of the Educational Law of the State of New York. The School began providing educational services in the fall of 2008 for the 9<sup>th</sup> grade. The provisional charter allowed for an additional grade to be added in each subsequent year until the School reaches grade 12. The School's most recent charter renewal was granted in 2017 extending operations for an additional five years. In February 2019, the School received approval to modify its charter renewal and add a middle school program to its existing high school program, adding grades 6 through 8 in subsequent years through June 30, 2021. As of June 30, 2019, the School has an enrollment of approximately 359 students in the 9<sup>th</sup> through 12<sup>th</sup> grades.

The School is governed by a Board of Trustees in accordance with the School's by-laws.

# 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Policies and Financial Statement Presentation

The following summarizes the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the Organization's financial statements, with references to the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) where applicable.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the School are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. This basis of accounting is in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The School follows the accounting treatment prescribed by the ASC relative to contributions. In accordance with the ASC, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2019

# 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

# Support and Revenue

Grants and pledges received are measured at their fair values and reported as an increase in net assets. The School reports grants and pledges as restricted when a portion of their value is assigned to a long-term future use, long-term meaning in excess of one year for the purpose of these financial statements.

The School reports gifts of goods and equipment as unrestricted support unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, the School reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

# Revenue Recognition

A substantial portion of the School's revenue and related receivables is derived from its billing to Albany City School District in accordance with State law, requiring the District to reimburse the School based on a per capita basis. These revenues are recognized ratably over the related school year during which they are earned.

Revenue from other governmental sources generally represents entitlement grants and are recognized as earned when allowable expenditures are incurred. Costs are subject to audit and changes, if any, are recognized in the year known.

# Functional Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs benefitted. Salaries are allocated based on estimates of total time spent, while other expenses are allocated based on estimates of the resources used.

# Advertising Costs

The School expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising costs for the year ended June 30, 2019 were \$63,271.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2019

# 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Grants, Contracts and Accounts Receivable

Receivables are carried at original invoice amounts less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by using historical experience applied to an aging of accounts. Receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts previously written off are recorded when received. A receivable is considered past due if any portion of the receivable balance is outstanding for more than 90 days. Management has determined an allowance was necessary as of June 30, 2019 in the amount of \$88,444.

Conditional and Unconditional Promises to Give

At June 30, 2019 the School had received unconditional promises to give as detailed in Note 4.

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of \$1,000 are capitalized and recorded at cost. Improvements and replacements of property and equipment are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs not improving or extending the lives of property and equipment are charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold or retired, their cost and related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reported in the statement of activities. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset (ranging from 3 to 39 years) and is computed using the straight-line method.

Net Assets

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the School and changes therein are reported according to two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized.

The two classes of net assets are as follows:

**Net Assets without Donor Restrictions** - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

**Net Assets with Donor Restrictions** - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met, either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2019

# 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

#### **Estimates**

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

# Tax Status

The School is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the School qualifies as a school and for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

#### **Donated Services**

The School received donated services from unpaid volunteers who assisted in fund raising, office administration and program activities. For the services donated, the criteria for recognition in these financial statements of such volunteer effort was not met and, therefore, no revenue and expense has been reflected in these financial statements. Management has estimated that volunteers have provided approximately 100 hours in assisting the School in the year ended June 30, 2019.

#### Fair Value

The ASC requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based on the observable input to the valuation of an asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value is defined as the price that the School would receive upon selling an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants.

# Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The School follows the ASC, *Accounting for Income Taxes*, and their current accounting policy for evaluating uncertain tax positions is in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The School has not recognized any benefits from uncertain tax positions in 2019 and believes it has no uncertain tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within 12 months of the balance sheet date of June 30, 2019.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2019

# 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (Continued)

Forms 990 and state income tax returns filed by the School are subject to examination by taxing authorities up to three years after the extended due date of each return. Forms 990 and state income tax filings for the School are no longer subject to examination for the year ended June 30, 2015 and prior.

Reclassifications

Certain 2018 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2019 financial statement presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncement

# ASU No. 2016-14

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, *Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.* The ASU provides for changes in financial statement presentation that affect classification of net assets, presentation of expenses, investment returns and presentation of operating cash flows. It also calls for enhanced disclosures of board designated funds, underwater endowment funds, methods used to allocate costs among functions, and liquidity and availability of resources. The ASU affects all not-for-profit organizations including charities, foundations, colleges and universities, health care providers, religious organizations, trade associations, and cultural institutions, among others. The School adopted this ASU in 2019.

# Subsequent Events

The School follows the ASC, *Subsequent Events*, which establishes general standards of accounting for, and disclosures of, events that occur after the due date of the financial statements but before the financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. In the preparation of these financial statements and notes thereto, management has evaluated subsequent events or transactions as to any potential material impact on operations or financial position occurring through October 29, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. No such events or transactions were identified.

#### 3. BOARD DESIGNATED CASH

The School has internally designated cash in the amount of \$76,388 as of June 30, 2019. The intended purpose of this designation is to provide a dissolution escrow to cover costs associated with an unanticipated closure, as required by the School's Charter Agreement.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2019

# 4. GRANTS, CONTRACTS, OTHER AND PLEDGES RECEIVABLE, NET

At June 30, 2019, grants, contracts and other receivables were comprised of the following sources:

School District Tuition, Net	\$ 89,074
U.S. Department of Agriculture	8,175
U.S. Department of Education	76,306
Other Receivables	 9,052
	\$ 182,607

At June 30, 2019 the School had received \$60,000 of promises to give which have been recorded as net assets with donor restrictions due to purpose restrictions.

# 5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are reflected at historical cost, net of related depreciation, and are comprised of the following at June 30, 2019:

Building Improvements	\$	664,300
Furniture and Fixtures		285,998
Equipment		228,066
Total at Cost		1,178,364
Less: Accumulated Depreciation		674,315
	<u>\$</u>	504,049

Depreciation expense was \$137,700 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) June 30, 2019

#### 6. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-Term debt is comprised of the following:

Loan payable to Bank of Greene County in monthly installments of \$2,801 including interest at a rate of 4.5% through August 2021.

\$ 69,215

Mortgage note payable to the Community Loan Fund in monthly principal installments of \$7,292, plus interest at a rate of 5% and maturing July 1, 2020. The loan has a tertiary creditor preference and is collateralized by substantially all assets of the School.

89,397

Note payable to Brighter Choice Foundation per Settlement Agreement dated August 23, 2017, which includes rental arrears, rental interest and replacement of fixtures and equipment at the School's previously leased building. Payments are calculated on a per pupil base formula as detailed in the Settlement Agreement. Interest accumulates at an implied rate of 5% annually and the note matures on June 30, 2021. This note is collateralized by substantially all assets of the School.

378,060

Interest free note payable to Ascentium Capital in monthly installments of \$1,308, maturing November 2021. This note is collateralized by equipment purchased with proceeds.

35,560

Total

572,232

Less: Current Portion

191,248

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion

\$ 380,984

Current maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2020	•	191,248
2021		369,417
2022		11,567
	\$	572,232

The School is required by the Community Loan Fund on the mortgage note to maintain debt covenants. As of June 30, 2019, the School was in compliance with these covenants.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) June 30, 2019

#### 7. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions represent amounts received and restricted by donors to provide resources for increased compensation to instructional staff, in accordance with the School's long-term financial stability plan. The restricted net assets as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Subject to Expenditure for Special Purpose:

Foundation for Teaching Fund

\$ 100,000

Net assets with donor restrictions are shown in the statements of financial position as follows:

Cash - Restricted	\$ 40,000
Pledges Receivable	 60,000
Total	\$ 100,000

#### 8. NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose.

Purpose Restrictions Accomplished:

Donations

80,000

#### 9. FACILITIES RENTAL

The School leases their facility from an unrelated third party through September 30, 2021. Net occupancy costs of the lease for the year ended June 30, 2019 were \$405,000.

Future annual minimum lease payments required under the office lease in the year ending June 30 is approximated as follows:

2020	\$ 465,000
2021	\$ 525,000
2022	\$ 135,000

# 10. RETIREMENT PLAN

The School has adopted a profit-sharing plan under IRC §401(k) covering substantially all eligible employees, along with a discretionary matching contribution of up to 50% of the employee's contribution, to a maximum matching contribution of 2% of the employee's gross compensation. The School's 401(k) matching contribution for the year ended June 30, 2019 was \$23,310.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) June 30, 2019

#### 11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The School is subject to audits and reviews of reimbursable costs by various governmental agencies. The outcome of the audits and reviews may have the effect of retroactively increasing or decreasing revenue from various sources. These changes, if any, will be recognized in accordance with the rules and guidelines established by the various funding sources.

#### 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School receives a substantial portion of its funding from school districts where students reside. Three school districts comprised approximately 89% of total revenue and support for the year ended June 30, 2019. No other funding source accounted for more than 10% of total revenue and support.

The School does occasionally maintain deposits in excess of federal insured limits. The ASC identifies this as a possible concentration of credit risk requiring disclosure, regardless of the degree of risk. The risk is managed by maintaining all deposits in high quality financial institutions.

# 13. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The School has \$915,551 of financial assets available within one year of the balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general expenditures consisting of cash of \$672,944 and receivables of \$242,607. The School has a goal to maintain financial assets, which consist of cash and short-term investments, on hand to meet 60 days of normal operating expenses, which are, on average, approximately \$841,000. The School has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due.

#### 14. RESTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The School's net assets for the year ended June 30, 2018 have been adjusted to correct the financial statements for the following activities:

Note Payable (Understated)	\$ (265,754)
Grants and Contracts Receivable (Overstated)	(78,753)
Deferred Revenue (Overstated)	80,000
Net Assets, as Originally Reported	 493,126
Net Assets, as Restated	\$ 228,619

ADDITIONAL REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

# CUSACK & COMPANY Certified Public Accountants LLC

7 Airport Park Boulevard Latham, New York 12110 (518) 786-3550 Fax (518) 786-1538 E-Mail Address: cpas@cusackcpas.com www.cusackcpas.com

Members of:
American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

MEMBERS OF:
NEW YORK STATE SOCIETY OF
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

# INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees of Green Tech High Charter School Albany, New York

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Green Tech High Charter School (a nonprofit organization) (the "School"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2019.

# **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

# **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

# **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the School's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPA'S LLC

Cusadet Cugny, CP4's LIC

Latham, New York October 29, 2019

# **CUSACK & COMPANY**

# Certified Public Accountants LLC

7 Airport Park Boulevard Latham, New York 12110 (518) 786-3550 Fax (518) 786-1538 E-Mail Address: cpas@cusackcpas.com www.cusackcpas.com

Members of: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

MEMBERS OF: NEW YORK STATE SCHOOL OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

October 29, 2019

To the Board of Trustees Green Tech High Charter School Albany, New York

We have audited the financial statements of Green Tech High Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, *Government Auditing Standards* and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated July 1, 2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

# Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies used by Green Tech High Charter School are described in the notes to the financial statements. As described in Note 2, the School changed the accounting policies related to the presentation of the financial statements of not-for-profit entities by adopting FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, in 2019. Accordingly, the accounting change has been retrospectively applied to prior periods presented as if the policy had always been used. We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. There were no sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. There were no sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

# Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

#### Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole except as noted in Schedule 1.

# Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

#### Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter dated October 29, 2019.

# Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the School's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

#### Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

# **Current Year Comments:**

1. During our testing over the payroll function we noted that as of June 30, 2019 the School had exceeded the legal limit for uncertified teachers by 1 employee. We discussed this item with management and they acknowledged this overage which was due primarily to unanticipated staffing changes which could not be rectified in a timely manner to provide class coverage. We recommend that the Board assists management in developing a policy to ensure that the uncertified teacher limitation is not breached and if this situation should arise there is a process to timely resolve and regain compliance.

# **Management Response:**

Management continually reviews compliance with this requirement and seeks certified teachers from a limited pool of employees. We accept the recommendation and will work to ensure compliance as resources are available going forward.

2. Our internal control test work over the payroll function showed that of the 15 personnel files sampled, 8 of these files were missing the new hire checklist as required by School policy. We recommend that all new hires have a checklist contained in their file or an index which shows the required documentation separated by tabs in the file.

# **Management Response:**

We accept this recommendation and will ensure all future employee files contain the new hire checklist as required by the payroll process.

3. Our internal control test work over the payroll function showed that of the 15 personnel files sampled, 3 of these files were missing new hire documentation (I-9, W-4, IT-2104, etc.) as required by School policy. Although these documents were located electronically on the payroll system we recommend that these documents, whether paper or electronic, are stored in a central location. We also recommend that if these documents are to be stored electronically the accounting policy and procedures manual is updated to reflect this change.

# Management Response:

We accept this recommendation and are in the process of moving files to our electronic program for safeguarding and to ensure a central document location

4. During our review of credit card transactions and bank transfers we noted that the accounting policy and procedures manual does not cover some of the activities which are part of these internal control systems. We recommend that the manual is updated to reflect the entire process for credit and debit card transactions as well as bank transfers to help strengthen the controls over these procedures.

# **Management Response:**

We accept this recommendation and will update the policy and process manual to include these additional activities.

During test work over Accounts Receivable we proposed an adjusting entry to record an allowance for doubtful accounts over older accounts which are deemed uncollectible. We recommend the Board revisit their policy for collection of older receivables and set a cutoff date to start the applicable collection or intercept process. We recommend this cutoff date is no longer than 60 days after the original anticipated collection date.

#### Management Response:

We accept this recommendation and continually monitor our aged receivable report. We will consider adopting a formal receivable policy for items outstanding in excess of 60 days.

This information is intended solely for the use of the board of trustees and management of Green Tech High Charter School and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

CUSACK & COMPANY, CPAS, LLC

Cusade & Congruy, CP4's LIC